
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 
1HD.

Friday, 1 June 2018

To:  Members of the Cultural & Economic Committee (Councillors S Cotter, G Perham, 
D Bowater, A Brandham, C Chambers, M Freeman, F Kharawala and S Rahman)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Cultural & Economic Committee to 
be held on Wednesday, 13 June 2018 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD.. 

M Saccoccio 
Town Clerk

AGENDA

1.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

4.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED *

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE Wednesday, 13 June 2018

No.s 1(f) and 1(h).

5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 1 - 8)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Cultural and 
Economic Services Committee meetings held on 12 March 2018 and on 24 
April 2018.

6.  MARKET SUB-COMMITTEE (Pages 9 - 14)

(a) To receive the draft minutes of the meeting held on 17 May 2018 and to 
consider any recommendations contained therein.

(b) To consider the Terms of Reference for the Market Sub-Committee. 

7.  COMMUNITY EVENTS (Pages 15 - 18)

To receive an update report regarding community events (attached) and 
consider the recommendation/s contained therein.

8.  BEST BAR NONE UPDATE 

To receive an update report on the delivery of the Best Bar None Award 
Scheme

9.  TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE (Pages 19 - 24)

To receive an update report (attached) regarding TACTIC activity during March 
2018 to April 2018 and consider the recommendation/s contained therein.

10.  YOUTH PROMISE GRANT 

To receive a verbal update on the grant scheme and consider applications if 
any received.

11.  MARKET TOWN REGENERATION FUNDED PROJECTS UPDATES 

To receive verbal updates on:

a) Market Relaunch project 
b) Architectural lighting project 
c) Electronic Variable Signage 
d) High Street Improvement Scheme (HSIS) 

12.  COMMITTEE WORK PLAN AND OBJECTIVES (Pages 25 - 28)

To receive the Committee objectives and work plan for 2018-2019 (based on 
the Town  Council Three Year Plan) (attached).



CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE Wednesday, 13 June 2018

13.  SERVICE WORK UPDATES 

To receive a verbal update on service work delivery:

• Greensand Ridge Walk and Cycle gateway project in the town centre
• Town centre toilet refurb
• Town Centre Business Confidence and Town Centre User Surveys
• Defibrillators

14.  BUDGET REPORTS (Pages 29 - 38)

To receive a report and consider recommendations therein.

15.  CHRISTMAS LIGHTS CONTRACT (Pages 39 - 40)

To receive a report regarding the new three-year Christmas Light contract (to 
follow) and consider the recommendation/s contained therein.

16.  EXCLUSION TO THE PUBLIC 

The Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following resolution 
should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the public 
interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960, the 
public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of the business 
about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of detailed discussions regarding Market Matters.

17.  MARKET MATTERS (Pages 41 - 60)

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                      Page 35

  
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

MONDAY 12 MARCH 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: C Palmer (substituting for A Brandham)
C Chambers
S Cotter – in the Chair
D Bowater
G Perham
S Rahman
J M Freeman
F Kharawala

Also in attendance:  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic & Central 
Services)
B Bodsworth (Town and Community 
Promotions Manager) – part meeting
Tracey Quinn (TACTIC Manager) – part 
meeting
Cllr T Morris
G Borelli – Chair, LB First

                    Members of the public: 5
Members of the press:  1

083/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillor 
A Brandham, substituted by Councillor C Palmer. 

084/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made and no dispensations had been 
requested. 

085/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Four members of the public spoke during the public session. Three spoke in 
relation to the street market (agenda item 10). A statement was read out by 
a market trader representative stating that traders wanted a fair system for 
rents and that many did not agree with the proposed long service discount. 
This had been reflected in a petition submitted to the Council on 6 March. It 
was stated that communications were felt to be misleading due to some 
errors. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 12 MARCH 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 36

A second speaker and market trader spoke to suggest that the Council should 
allow traders to form a co-operative and run the market themselves.

A member of the public and town centre retailer questioned the justification 
for use of Central Bedfordshire Council grant monies for the market relaunch 
project and whether there would be evidence to show the project had 
benefitted the market. It was noted that the retail sector was experiencing 
challenging times and that everyone wanted the market to succeed. 

A member of the public and representative of LB First spoke about the 
Christmas lighting contract, due to be reviewed later in 2018. A request was 
made to consider additional lighting for areas such as Ropa Court and North 
Street.

Members of the public were thanked for attending the meeting and for their 
comments. The 4 market traders then left the meeting

086/CE    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

The Committee received the draft minutes of the previous Committee 
meeting held on 10 January 2018. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Cultural and 
Economic Services Committee held on 10 January 2018 be approved as 
a correct record and were signed accordingly.

087/CE SUB-COMMITTEE AND TASK GROUP MINUTES

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 
meeting held on 1 February 2018. 

Minute reference 097/MK: several recommendations made by the Market 
Sub-Committee were given consideration. 

RESOLVED to endorse the revised Market Cancellation Policy.

RESOLVED to endorse the minor amendments to the revised 
Community/Charity Pitch Policy.

RESOLVED to endorse the creation of a Community Tuesday Speciality 
Market to take place once per month. 

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 1 
February 2018.

088/CE TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE

The Committee received an update report regarding TACTIC activity during 
December 2017 to January 2018, including the youth work programme, 
external hire of the Centre outside operating hours, satellite projects, 
agencies, individual support, staffing and attendance. 

Page 2



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 12 MARCH 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 37

It was noted that attendance had increased; this was felt to be because of a 
greater awareness within the wider community of the TACTIC offer but also a 
greater awareness of issues affecting young people, particularly mental health 
issues. 

The Committee was advised of concerns regarding the potential loss of 
funding for youth counselling services, despite a growing requirement for this 
service and increasing waiting lists. 

TACTIC staff and young people were thanked for their recent celebration 
event to note the 15th anniversary of the Centre. This had been well organised 
and the exhibition on the history of the building had drawn in a wider audience. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

089/CE COMMUNITY EVENTS

The Committee received a progress report on community events including the 
Outdoor Cinema Event at Mentmore Park in April, the annual Music in the 
Park concert programme, the Big Lunch Festival in June, the Linslade Canal 
Festival in July, Living History Day in October and the initial planning for the 
Christmas Festival. The potential for corporate sponsorship of events was 
discussed. 

It was noted that the Royal British Legion and other partners were leading on 
the events to commemorate the centenary of the end of World War 1 in 
November 2018, but that the Town Council would be leading on the beacon 
lighting part of the commemoration. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

090/CE    BEST BAR NONE UPDATE

The Committee received a verbal update on the delivery of the Best Bar None 
Award Scheme, designed to improve standards within licensed premises. 
Having trained six assessors in January, assessments of the licensed 
premises were currently underway and would be followed by a People’s Vote 
in April. It was anticipated that an awards presentation would be held in June. 

The Committee was reminded that the Best Bar None Co-ordinator also 
facilitated the scheme in Dunstable and Houghton Regis, with a contribution 
being made by those town councils. Funding had been secured to extend the 
post until the end of March 2019, which would allow time for future 
arrangements to be given consideration. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

091/CE YOUTH PROMISE GRANT FUND

The Committee received a verbal update on the new grant scheme.  To date, 
four applications had been received. Additional information was being sought 

Page 3



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 12 MARCH 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 38

from all four applicants. The grant steering group would assess applications 
in advance of the next Committee meeting. 

The point was reiterated that clear measurable outcomes needed to be 
established prior to approval of any grant funding. 

RESOLVED to note the information. 

092/CE MARKET

The Committee received a report and was asked to consider the 
recommendations therein regarding proposed market pitch fees. 

The Committee was reminded that management of the street market was a 
discretionary service to the community and that as such, there was no legal 
requirement for consultation. However, in line with good practice, the Town 
Council had undertaken consultation over a period of time. 

The Committee was reminded that a previous fee structure had been agreed 
in 2017 but it had been agreed to defer implementation of any increases until 
1 April 2018 to allow time for traders to plan and budget accordingly. 

Ongoing discussions had taken place in respect of the agreed fee structure 
and the revised proposals were as a direct result of feedback given by traders 
and trader representatives. The fee for additional space beyond the maximum 
of three standard pitches had been reduced from £2.10 per square metre to 
£0.50 per square metre. In addition, it was recommended to award traders a 
long service discount on pitch fees. 

It was reiterated that no pitch fee changes had been implemented since the 
Town Council took over the running of the street market in 2012, but that the 
time had come to standardise fees and ensure a fair and transparent fee 
structure which would apply equally to every trader. 

Under the revised proposals, 8 out of 30 permanent traders would see no 
change in their pitch fee. 11 would see a reduced fee as a result of the long 
service discount, and 11 would see an increase, which would be implemented 
in a gradual process depending on the amount of the increase. Up to 24 
months would be allowed in order for rent equalisation to be achieved. 

Committee members expressed support for the proposals but recognised that 
the complexity might be difficult for some to clearly understand. Councillors 
asked that each trader be given clear, personalised communication as to the 
nature of their own fee and how the recommendations would affect these.

A query was raised regarding turnover of traders. It was noted that the market 
industry was one with frequent fluctuations and that it was a particularly 
challenging retail environment at present. This very fact had necessitated the 
market relaunch project, with every effort being made to ensure the market 
would change, grow and develop in order to survive into the future. 

On being proposed and seconded, the four recommendations being put to the 
Committee were agreed unanimously.

Page 4



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 12 MARCH 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 39

RESOLVED:

1.1 To endorse the proposal that Casual market traders pay £23 per pitch 
at 3m x 3m per pitch.

1.2 To endorse that additional square metre space taken above the 
standard maximum space of 27 square metres is charged at .50p per 
metre.

1.3 To endorse recognition of trader’s ‘long service’ for permanent 
traders by offering a whole pitch fee discount according to years 
served:
i. 5 years and over: 5% discount
ii. 10 years and over: 10% discount
iii. 15 years and over: 15% discount
iv. 20 years and over: 20% discount

1.4 To endorse an incremental approach for permanent traders to 
achieve the new pitch fee owed from 01/04/18 over a period of up to 
24 months based on the approach set out below:
i. Month one: pay current fee plus up to £4 (applied to all traders 

relevant to their individual circumstances.
ii. Month two onwards: traders with greater than £4 pitch fee 

increases will pay monthly incremental increases of 10% per 
month of the remaining difference.

iii. Month two onwards: traders with greater than 45% pitch fee 
increases will pay monthly incremental increases of 5% per 
month of the remaining difference, over a period of 24 months.

093/CE COMMITTEE WORK PLAN AND OBJECTIVES

The Committee received the Committee objectives and work plan for the 
current year, in accordance with the Town Council’s Three Year Plan, as well 
as a proposed plan for the forthcoming municipal year.

RESOLVED to note the Committee objectives and work plan for 2017-
2018 and for 2018-2019. 

094/GE BUDGET REPORTS

The Committee received a system generated budget report for the revenue 
budget and earmarked reserves, as well as an additional sheet outlining any 
committed expenditure and the amounts remaining available. 

RESOLVED:
i. To note the report.
ii. To carry forward unspent funds from the Community Access 

Defibrillator budget line 101/4554 into the earmarked reserve for 
this purpose (970/9022), to facilitate the ongoing costs of 
maintenance and kit replenishment.  

Page 5



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 12 MARCH 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 40

Following on from the earlier discussion regarding provision of services at 
TACTIC, it was proposed and seconded that any underspend within the 
TACTIC revenue budget (104) be carried forward into the TACTIC earmarked 
reserve (970/9020) and that authority be delegated to the Town Clerk to 
authorise expenditure of up to £6,000 for future service provision. This was 
agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED that any underspend within the TACTIC revenue budget 
(104) be carried forward into the TACTIC earmarked reserve (970/9022) 
and that authority be delegated to the Town Clerk to authorise 
expenditure of up to £6,000 for future service provision. 

095/CE MARKET TOWN REGENERATION FUNDED PROJECTS UPDATE

The Committee received a verbal update on Market Town Regeneration Fund 
projects including the market relaunch, electronic signage and architectural 
lighting. An update was also given on the High Street Improvement Scheme. 

Some concern was expressed regarding project completion timescales but it 
was noted that many elements of the projects were outside of the control of 
the Town Council and dependent on other parties. 

RESOLVED to note the information. 

The meeting closed at 2123 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 MARCH 2018.

Chair            13 JUNE 2018

Page 6



                                                                                                                                      Page 35

  
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 24 APRIL 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: A Brandham
E Wallace (substituting for C Chambers)
S Cotter – in the Chair
G Perham
J M Freeman
F Kharawala

Also in attendance:  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
Tracey Quinn (TACTIC Manager) – part 
meeting
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

                    Members of the public: 2
Members of the press:  0

096/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillor 
C Chambers (substituted by Councillor E Wallace) and Councillor D Bowater.

097/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made and no dispensations had been 
requested. 

098/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Two members of the public from Linslade Tennis Club attended the meeting 
and answered questions from the Committee in support of their grant 
applications.

Members of the public were thanked for attending the meeting.

099/CE YOUTH PROMISE GRANT

The Committee received summaries for 6 applications received for the Youth 
Promise Grant, along with the guidelines for the Youth Promise Grant.

Discussion took place regarding the applications submitted and the 
assessment criteria for the Youth Promise Grant.  A number of views were 

Page 7



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 24 APRIL 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 36

expressed and the applications were assessed in terms of meeting criteria, 
benefit to the Youth organisations now and in the future and financial need.  

Organisation Purpose of grant Amount Outcome

Linslade 
Tennis Club

New mini hard tennis court 
and practice fence and to build 
links with schools and provide 
opportunity for young people 
to play tennis.

£24,872.00 Approved

4YPUK
Youth work training course for 
16-19 yr olds – minimum of 12 
YP at risk of becoming NEET. 

£12,729.35
Phased 
payments

Approved

Friends of 
Chums

MentalHealth/Suicide 
Awareness 
Workshops/training 
qualification

£2,270.00 Approved

Leighton 
Buzzard 
Hockey 
Club

Hockey coaching in schools, 
develop ambassadors x 5, 
develop coaches/volunteers

£12,009.00
Phased 
payments

Approved

Leighton 
Town Cricket 
Club

New grass mower purchase.
£8,260.00 Not 

approved 
no further 
action

Groundworks
Targeted mentoring and group 
work for domestic violence 
perpetrators

£21,119.40 Not 
approved 
no further 
action

RESOLVED to approve Youth Promise Grant funding amounting to 
£51,880.35 to four applicants (as above).  Two applicants were not 
approved and no further action would be taken.

The meeting closed at 2040 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 APRIL 2018.

Chair            13 JUNE 2018

Page 8



Agenda Item No. 6 (a)  

Page 49

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTE

THURSDAY 17 MAY 2018 AT 1000 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman (Chair)
K Cursons
C Palmer (substituting for S Cotter)
C Perham (substituting for T Morris)
 

                      Also in attendance:      M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic 
Services) 
A Harrison (Market Manager)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
D Gibbons (Market Trader Representative)

           Members of the Public: 1
           Members of the Press: 0

The Chairman opened the meeting by welcoming those present.

100/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor T Morris (substituted 
by Councillor C Perham) and Councillor S Cotter (substituted by Councillor C 
Palmer) and Councillor D Bowater.

101/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made. 

102/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

A question was raised regarding agenda item 5 Appendix A, General Market 
Update, Trader Recruitment and Retention as to whether the 2018/2019 
targets of an increase of 1 stall was still the expectation.  It was confirmed that 
this target was put in place at the time the plan was developed and had not 
been reviewed yet.  

Mr D Gibbons, Market Trader Representative, also raised a question following 
a meeting on Tuesday evening where the implementation of the new pitch fee 
structure was discussed.  The Chair confirmed that Councillor G Perham would 
be meeting with the Market Manager to go through the process of calculating 
pitch fee charges. If any problems or difficulties are identified they would be 
addressed after the meeting.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Market Sub-Committee 17 MAY 2018 
                                                                                                                                                               

Page 50

103/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 1 February 2018 for consideration. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 1 February 2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly.

104/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
 
The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity from the 
Market Manager including information on delivery against market plan targets, 
trader recruitment and access to the High Street on market days.  Following a 
barrier review where no barrier had been in place on the Tuesday market it 
was decided to reinstate the barrier due to hazards encountered to ensure the 
space is managed appropriately. This would have financial implications but the 
difference would be covered within the current year budget allocation.

Councillors discussed the targets set and agreed these need to be reviewed 
and should be more realistic when originally set.  Projected figures were not as 
good as they should be however in the current national trend of markets 
declining Leighton Buzzard market was continuing to remain buoyant and 
evolve.  
 
RESOLVED to –

1.1 note the report
1.2 endorse minor amendments to Market Documents listed below 

which take into account the introduction of the general Data 
Protection Regulations (GDPR) requirements:
(a) Rules and regulations
(b) Charity stall guidelines
(c) Temporary day license
(d) Leighton Buzzard Market License and schedules
(e) Trader Application Form
(f) Trader Risk Assessment
(g) Alcohol Sales and Associate Trader form

RECOMMENDED to the Cultural & Economic Services Committee to 
endorse the draft guidelines regarding use of the market for Councillor 
Surgeries (see Appendix A).

105/MK BUDGET REPORT

The Sub-Committee received a budget report for January to March 2018. 

RESOLVED to note the report 

The meeting closed at 1117 hours.

Page 10



Market Sub-Committee 17 MAY 2018 
                                                                                                                                                               

Page 51

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 MAY 2018.

Chair 16 AUGUST 2018 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



June 2018 V2

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Website: www.
Appendix A

LEIGHTON BUZZARD MARKET

MARKET PITCH BASED ELECTED COUNCILLOR SURGERIES

It is understood that the market provides a natural focal and gathering point for 
residents and visitors alike. 

It follows that it can provide both an opportunist and planned gathering mechanism 
for reaching out to members of the public inviting feedback on Town Council services 
and town-wide issues. 

As part of the Town Council’s ambition to explore and develop client-centred 
methods for residents to communicate with their Elected Councillors, a market pitch 
shall be made available for Councillor Surgeries, in order to engage with the public. 

In planning these surgeries, Elected Councillors are sensitive to the importance of 
maintaining the integrity of the market and its existing operational guidelines. 

Surgery pitches guidelines:

 Town Council and Central Bedfordshire Council elected Councillors will be 
held on separate market days.

 Town Council Councillor surgeries may operate on the 1st Saturday of the 
month at no charge.

 Central Bedfordshire Councillor Surgeries shall be permitted a pitch at a 
charge of £10 per attendance.

 Elected Councillors only will be permitted to attend market surgeries.

 The market shall not be a venue for Political purposes or canvassing, as per 
the formally endorsed current guidelines for Charity stalls. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Cultural and Economic Services Committee                                      Agenda Item No: 7

Date: 13th June 2018  

Title: Community Events update report

Purpose of the Report: To provide a progress report on community events

Contact Officer: Ben Bodsworth, Town & Community Promotions 
Manager 

1. RECOMMENDATION

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To note the report.

2. OUTDOOR CINEMA IN THE PARK 

2.1 Pop-Up events held their first outdoor film screening in Linslade on 11th & 12th April with 
over 70 people attending on the first evening, and with an increased social media 
presence, over 200 local residents attended on the second evening. 

2.2 Feedback from both events has been good from both members of the public and 
organisers

2.3 Additional pre-work was undertaken by officers in the lead up to the open air cinema 
events taking place to ensure those living within the Mentmore Park area were aware of 
the planed events via a leaflet drop.  

2.4 Pop-Up Events are working with officers to establish a date for their return to Linslade 
in September for another film screening. 

3. BIG LUNCH FOOD FESTIVAL
(Report written prior to event taking place). 

3.1 The Big Lunch food festival is due to take place on Saturday 3rd June 2018 

Corporate 
Objective/s

LLTC Three Year Plan – Objective 2. To promote and develop a vibrant town 
through partnership working and initiatives including management of the street 
market, provision of town and community promotions, town centre enhancements, 
tourism and practical support for local businesses. 

Implications:
Financial √ Big Lunch Event remains on budget.

Canal Festival price increases to be balanced by an increase in parking fee’s.
Music in the Park budget on track to deliver a small surplus for the 2018 
season of events. 
Living History remains on budget and will utilise the full budget for the 2018 
event.
Christmas Festival weekend will benefit from an increased budget with an 
income target. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 
to coincide with the national Big Lunch initiative, organised by the Eden Project. 

3.2 At this year’s event, 35 registered food and 8 food-related stall holders have registered 
to attend on the day along with cooking demonstrations, walkabout entertainers and 
children’s activities throughout the day. All entertainment and activities provided 
throughout the day by Leighton-Linslade Town Council are free for members of the 
public. 

3.3 To promote healthy eating and encourage youngsters to become more aware of the 
food which they eat, a fruit carver has been booked for the day to demonstrate alongside 
a ‘have-a-go’ workshop provided by a local children’s based catering school. 

3.4 Promotion of the event has included social media, printed material and advertising in 
local and regional publications aimed at families and young people. It is hoped with 
some paid for social media advertising, these adverts will reach an even wider audience 
than previously. 

3.5 Budget (101/4552) –The budget for the Big Lunch Food Festival in the financial year 
2018/19 is £10,000. A further £3,000 was allocated from 101/4553 for salaries. Income 
for the event is generated by the sale of pitches at the event. It is expected that the full 
£10,000 budget along with some of the income generated will be spent on the event. A 
full budget breakdown will be provided at the 3rd September Cultural & Economic 
Services Committee meeting. 

3.6 Stewarding for the event will be undertaken by a mixture of internal and external staffing 
to ensure the safety and security of members of the public attending the event. 

4. LINSLADE CANAL FESTIVAL 

4.1 Linslade Canal Festival will take place on Saturday 28th July, celebrating its 
16th Birthday. Planning is well underway with 76 traders and demonstrators 
confirmed alongside 22 canal boats currently. 

4.2 It is anticipated a team of 40+ stewards will be required to provide suitable coverage for 
the event and to ensure those visiting the event have a safe and enjoyable experience. 
We expect to use a mixture of internal and external staff to cover these roles. 

4.3 The categories for the fun dog show have been altered again this year to reflect the 
categories which went down well last year along with some new ones to keep the fun 
competition fresh and inviting. 

4.4 One of our main demonstrators who also brings in sponsorship for the event is unable 
to attend this year, and whilst we have a replacement demonstrator, the sponsor hasn’t 
responded to sponsorship requests as yet.

4.5 We will be utilising Cedars Upper School for some car parking for guests with disabilities 
this year alongside Linslade Middle School. It is hoped that this will alleviate some of the 
pressures experienced by the Linslade Middle School car park and provide a better 
experience for our guests with disabilities. 

Page 16



 
4.6 To counteract the rise in costs experienced by the event, an increased parking fee of £5 

per car is being charged, whilst a fee of £2.50 for disabled parking is being maintained. 

5. MUSIC IN THE PARK

5.1 The Music in the Park series of concerts begins on Sunday 3rd June and lasts until 
Sunday 16th September (15 concerts in total). 

5.2 The refurbished band stand completed just prior to the beginning of 
the season will host the concerts with newly installed LED lighting 
ready for the Proms in the Park event on Sunday 19th August 
performed by Kidlington Concert Brass. 

5.3 Budget (101/4513) – There is an expected expenditure of £5212 for the bands and 
Leighton Buzzard day centre, with an additional expenditure of £800 for stewarding at 
the events (101/4003) which is undertaken by members of Leighton Linslade Town 
Council. Publicity materials (banners, posters etc.) will also be purchased from 
101/4513. 

5.4 Our themed event will take place on Sunday 17th June with RAF Halton providing a 
band, and refreshments being provided by RAF (1003 Squardon) Cadets. The theme 
will be World War 1 and a celebration of 100 years of the RAF. 

5.5 As per previous years, during the course of this year’s concerts, visitors will be asked to 
complete a short evaluation form. 

6. LIVING HISTORY EVENT PREPARATION 

6.1 Working with Historical Promotions, Officers are working on a programme of activities 
which will commemorate the events of World War 1 in line with national 
commemorations taking place throughout the year. We have secured a 
WW1 Bi-Plane, along with demonstrations, re-enactment of drill and 
period dress to come to the High Street for the day. 

6.2 RAF Halton Band along with local vocal artist Fiona Harrison will 
perform throughout the day within the high-street alongside the Charter Market. A full 
road closure order will be applied for to enable the event to take place fully within the 
high street. 

6.3 Budget (101/4516) - The budget for this year’s event is £10,000 with an additional £1000 
for stewarding (101/4003). It is expected that the budget for this year’s event will be fully 
utilised. 

7. ARMISTICE DAY COMMEMORATIONS 

7.1 Officers are working with representatives of the Royal British Legion to assist with their Page 17



 
plans and preparations for the centenary commemorations planned within the town 
along with providing some financial support to the organisation to enhance the 
commemorations. 

8. CHRISTMAS FESTIVAL WEEKEND PREPARATION

8.1 Officers will begin plans and preparations in conjunction with LB First 
shortly for the preparations of the 3 day event to take place on 30th 
November, 1st & 2nd December 2018. 

End

Page 18



Cultural and Economic Services Committee  Agenda Item No: 9

Date:  13 June 2018

Title:  TACTIC Update

Purpose of the Report:     To update Members of work undertaken at TACTIC
 During February, March & April 2018

Contact Officer:                 Tracey Quinn, TACTIC Manager

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan: No 14. Expand the reach of 
TACTIC by initiating a “hub & spoke” model across the 
town.

Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery

√ Whole report

Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION

Should members be minded, the recommendation is to:

1.1   To note the report. 

2. YOUTH WORK PROGRAMME

2.1   February to April 2018
Over the three months information and activities at the centre has included the 
following youth work awareness themes:

 Information on self-harm/mental health and where to go for help
 February half term trips out to bowling and golf
 First Aid training for 10 young people
 International women’s day & centenary and positive role models
 Assemblies at Brooklands and Leighton Middle schools
 Workshops took place at Scouts group on internet safety and mental health 

awareness workshop with the older Explorer scouts. These were well 
received and are a good way to promote TACTIC to other young people.

 Exam stress support and information was on offer in April 
 Youth forum members took part in a CBC young people’s engagement day 

to share views and ideas on a new mental health in schools toolkit. 
 Easter Project activities saw an afternoon of varied arts & crafts, Ice 

skating trip out and the first WW1 mural arts workshop was held focussing 
on young people’s artistic ideas and designs for the community mural 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



 

Page 2 of 5

boards which will go on display at the war memorial in Church Square 
(working with the Head of Grounds & Environmental Services.

 Easter Play Scheme took place at Pages Park Pavilion with daily 
attendance of 24, 27 & 29 children aged 8 -11yrs old taking part

 TACTIC 15th Anniversary Day – an open day was held on Saturday 10th 
February to celebrate the 15th year of the centre being open and offering 
services to young people across the town. This was combined with the 
historical society’s history research project in the TACTIC building and a 
photo exhibition of the centre was on display. This was well attended with 
over 70 residents attending throughout the day and mini tours of the centre 
taking place. Youth forum members were on hand to supply refreshments 
and celebratory cake.

3. STAFFING/SERVICE ‘INTERIM’ CHANGES
      
3.1 The TACTIC centre has experienced a change in personal and this enables a 

review the staff resources to best fit service delivery. This has seen interim 
measures being put in place leading up to the summer project enabling the 
team to still offer most of our provision whilst recruitment takes place over the 
coming months.

3.2 Interim measures will include:
 Friday 3-6pm drop in session temporary closing 
 Wednesday satellite project work in the Sandhill’s area is postponed until we 

are at full staff capacity. 
 All other services and projects will continue to be delivered to the best of our 

ability within the resources and capacity of the current service team.

3.3 All current vacancies will be reviewed and the recruitment for the previous 8hr 
part time youth support worker role was suspended considering the changing 
staff situation.

4. HIRE OF CENTRE UPDATE

4.1 TACTIC commenced the hire of the building to community/charitable 
organisations in December 2017 to utilise the facilities during the daytime. To 
date six organisations have booked use of the centre Monday – Thursday times 
varying between 9:30am – 3pm. To date from December 2017 - March 2018 
the expected income will be £1970.

These include:

ORGANISATION USAGE TOTAL INCOME
MIND 2x per week – 

4.5 hrs per day
£1,390. 00

Take Care - Private 
Counselling 

Weekly for 2 hours £    45.00      
(new booking)

Home Educated 
parents & young 
people group

Fortnightly – 2 hours £  180.00

Page 20



 

Page 3 of 5

Richmond Fellowship Weekly for 4 hrs £  245.00

Cams Ad Hoc £    60.00
SNAP - Ad Hoc £    50.00
Total Income: £1,970.00 

4.2 Hire charges have been set at affordable prices based on a comparison with 
similar facilities in the immediate area. This will be reviewed after a full year of 
hiring and follow the Council’s committee process for annually setting of fees 
and charges.  

4.3 The centre is now hired out for 70% of available daytime usage and we hope 
to improve on this over the coming months with flexibility for ad-hoc bookings.

5.  RELATE – YOUTH COUNSELLING

5.1 At its last meeting, Committee was advised about the expected reduction in 
funding for the youth counselling provision called ‘Talk-Time’ at TACTIC. The 
current service provider was not successful in securing on-going funding from 
the East London Foundation Trust. Officers have been in contact with an 
alternative provider and they do not offer a ‘like-for-like’ service. Existing 
TACTIC Reserves and Committee funds have been identified along with grant 
funds of £2,000 from the ‘Tesco’s Bags of Help’ grant scheme, to continue 
funding the Wednesday and Thursday service using the original service 
provider Relate. As per Committee’s recommendation, (Ref. 094/GE) the Town 
Clerk and TACTIC Manager have liaised with the service provider to this end.

5.2 TACTIC staff receive referrals and manage the appointment system for the 
externally contracted Counselling service. TACTIC staff do not deliver 
counselling themselves. The client waiting list was closed in mid-March due to 
the uncertainty of future funding and the increase in referrals for young people 
seeking support. TACTIC is currently only able to run the Wednesday 
counselling sessions with the input of Relate the external agency and using the 
Tesco bags grant funds. The Thursday service will recommence once Relate 
have recruited a worker. (The previous working having handed in her notice), 
and the aim is to re-open the incoming referrals after the existing waiting list is 
reduced. Young people are currently waiting between 6- 8 weeks for the 
counselling service which utilises the TACTIC centre for delivery.

5.3 Whilst this provides an immediate support for local delivery. Committee will be 
aware that providing this interim funding is unlikely to prevent future funding 
shortfalls for the same service. Committee’s financial commitments will need 
future consideration.

6. AGENCIES

6.1 TACTIC has the following specialist agencies onsite, offering their service and        
using TACTIC as a key town centre base for young people, during February 2018 
and April 2018 66 appointments were held and the centre as follows:

Page 21



 

Page 4 of 5

 4YP (contracted by Central Bedfordshire Council) offer specialist careers, 
employment and training advice on a weekly basis at TACTIC. 13 
appointments for those who are not in education, training or employment 
(NEET) were supported.

 Relate - as per para. para 5 - (Provide the ‘Talk Time’ youth counselling 
services) and 38 appointments were held. 

 Brook (the young person’s specialist sexual health service) can no longer 
provide us with a nurse on a regular basis so we now refer to the local 
Brook young people’s clinic

 Work Club run by TACTIC in partnership with Amicus Trust for 16-21yr 
olds (NEET’s) had 15 young people supported.

7. INDIVIDUAL SUPPORT 

7.1 During Feb/Mar/April 76 one-to-ones took place with the TACTIC Youth 
Workers giving advice & support. The order of most presenting issues were:

 Family,
 Mental Health, 
 School and Relationships. 

7.2 Incoming referrals over the three months requiring more intensive 121 support 
saw 21 referrals received to TACTIC of which:

 13 were directly from parents, 
 5 school referrals, 
 1 self-referral and 
 from CAMH.

8. DELIVERY PLAN 2018 – 2020 

8.1 The TACTIC draft delivery plan for April 2018 – March 2020 will now be 
postponed whilst a review of current services/staffing options takes place. The 
review will reflect the key centre-based delivery activity and the satellite 
provisions. Officers will present options at the autumn committee meeting.  

9. ATTENDANCE

9.1 Attendance/contact comparisons for this period and the previous period i.e. 
Feb/Mar/Apr 2016/2017 and this year’s Feb/Mar/Apr 2018, can be seen in the 
below graph. 

9.2 This graph shows the change of young people accessing TACTIC. The older 
members, aged 20+, have now moved on and a new younger age group is 
attending. The trend over the past 12 months has seen an overall decrease in 
attendance compared to previous two years. 

9.3 There has been anti-social behaviour concerns in the town with two different 
small groups of young people who were attending TACTIC over recent months. 
This can have an impact on other young people’s attendance and create a 

Page 22



 

Page 5 of 5

ne
gati
ve 
per
cep

tion of the centre. These groups are no longer attending regularly so staff will be 
promoting the centre to new users over the summer period.

10. TACTIC BUILDING SIGNAGE

10.1 Planning consent for installing signage on the building has been applied for and 
on the 10 May the statutory period of public consultation commenced and is 
due to end on 30 May 2019 (21 days).  

11. FORTHCOMING PROJECTS:

 WW1 Art Mural project- May/June
 Youth Engagement Day - June
 Summer Holiday Project (4 weeks)
 Summer Play scheme at Mentmore Pavilion 

END

 2016 2017 2018

Under 16 516 969 1170

16 & Over 1168 961 362

Male 845 950 718

Female 839 980 824

Total YP Feb to Apr 1684 1930 1542

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item No. 

Page 1 of 3

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
CULTURAL & ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2018-2019 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2015-2018)

Cultural & Economic Services Strategic Objectives for 2015-2018 (from Town Council Three Year Plan)

Objective 
ref.no. (3 
Yr Plan)

Objective Timescale Comments

14 Expand the reach of TACTIC by initiating a 
“hub & spoke” model across the town. As 
per Development Plan

Sept 2017

Nov 2017
Dec 2017

Workshops in schools - schools offer project/ PSHE - in progress (delayed 
waiting for new worker to lead on) COMMENCED, Autumn 2017
Annual achievement awards event DELIVERED, December 2017
Satisfaction survey

20 Secure a three year Christmas lighting 
contract

31 July 2018 Secure new 3yr Christmas Lighting Contract for 2018-2020.
Inclusion in 2018/19 Committee work plan 

23 Review and update the Market Development 
and Business Plan.

ongoing COMPLETED - Development plan endorsed May 2016. 
Monitoring updates are provided to Market Sub Committee. 
Market relaunch merges with this work via the Market Town Regeneration 
Fund projects and some actions may be superseded by relaunch activity.

24 2014 Residents’ survey: progress actions as 
agreed, following resident feedback. 
Themes: communications, market, parking, 
lighting, entertainment.

31 March 
2018

COMPLETED - Actions subsumed into Market Town Regeneration Fund 
(MTRF) application. Three projects awarded funding. Proposals for non 
MTRF funded actions being pursued separately via Policy & Finance 
Committee.

25 Review and update the Tourism Strategy.
Visitor economy

Budget funds used for supporting the development of visitor 
information and items that celebrate and explain the town’s assets and 
its history (503/4920)

34 Celebrate the heritage of the Parish through 
information, interactive exhibits or 
educational resources. Consider a Town 
Trail or continuing celebration of the town’s 
connections with The Borrowers.

31 March 
2018

Historic legacy project proposals presented to committee during 2016 and 
deferred for future consideration. Deferred to 2018/19 work plan.

37 Secure external funding where possible, to 
develop existing and new sporting and 
leisure facilities. 

ongoing Also sits in Grounds & Environment Services Committee.
This item is reflected in Committee’s Terms of Ref. No. 4, To keep under 
review the need for additional community facilities and make 
recommendations to Council as to how to satisfy such need.

40 Continue to improve walking routes to the 
town centre, railway station and local 
schools.

ongoing CBC officers will receive feedback at any time from Committee on ideas, 
concerns and issues identified.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 12



Agenda Item No. 

Page 2 of 3

WORK PLAN 2018-2019

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2018-2019
23 April 2018 Youth Promise Grant Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications

 13 June  2018 TACTIC
Market update (Sub Committee 
minutes)
MTRF project updates (verbal)
Youth Promise Grant 
Events 
Best Bar None

Town centre business confidence and user survey – receive final report (deferred to 
11/09/18)
Town centre pigeon management – options for endorsement (deferred to 11/09/18)
Christmas lighting 3-year scheme (2018 – 2020) – endorse scheme/contractor
TACTIC – 3-year development plan (2018 – 2020) (deferred to 15/10/18)

23 July 2018 Youth Promise Grant Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications

11 September 2018 TACTIC
Market update (Sub Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Youth Promise Grant 
Events 
Best Bar None

Town centre history project – project outline proposal
Town centre wifi 
Town centre pigeon management – options for endorsement
Town centre business confidence and user survey – receive final report

15 October 2018 Youth Promise Grant Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications
TACTIC – 2-year delivery plan (2018 – 2020)

10 December 2018 TACTIC
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Youth Promise Grant 
Events 
Best Bar None

Review of 2017/18 programme of events and budget recommendations for 2018/19. 
Consider priority projects for inclusion in the 2018-2019 budget. 

Youth Promise Grant Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications

12 March 2019 TACTIC

P
age 26



Agenda Item No. 

Page 3 of 3

 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes)
Budget monitoring
Youth Promise Grant 
Events
Best Bar None

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Cultural and Economic Services Committee    Agenda Item No: 14

Date:  13 June 2018

Title:  Budget update

Purpose of the Report: To monitor Committee budgets

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Economic 
Development

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. Objective 19
Implications:
Financial √ Within existing budget
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

a. To note the report.

b. To allocate £500 contribution to fundraising for a 6th community 
defibrillator from budget 970/9057, as per para. 2.5, to be released when, 
sufficient funds have been secured to purchase the equipment.

2. BUDGET INFORMATION

2.2 At its meeting on 10/01/18, Committee received a detailed list of project budget 
use. Appendix A (attached) provides the 11-month budget account sheet for 
the 2017/18 financial year providing spend information to date.

2.3 Appendix B (attached) is the budget account sheet for current, 2018/19, 
earmarked reserves. This budget sheet does not show future budget spend 
commitments as previously endorsed by Committee. These are shown in the 

table below: 

EMR (970)  Information / rationale Remaining
(9018)
Economic 
Development
£28,914

Spend / allocations to date: 

Committee endorsed spend for 2018/19:
- Children’s Trail (as above 3.1) allocation of £2,600.
- Market promotional & trader recruitment activity of
  £4,000 

Less

£2,600

£4,000

Page 29

Agenda Item 14



 
=£22,314
Remaining 
to allocate

(9019) 
Best Bar None
£7,959

Committee endorsed – partnership funding to be 
used to deliver the award scheme. Allocated

£-0-

(9020) TACTIC
£11,329

Spent - RELATE funding contribution of £1,936 to 
cover costs of Wednesday session. (Plus grant of 
£2,000 from Tesco Bags scheme – total £3,939) 

Ad hoc committed spend 

Committed spend - External signage committed 
£1,010

Committed spend - £6,000 is the additional put in 
reserves by committee for RELATE’s Thursday 
session 2018/19. Not released due to staff changes 
at RELATE – officers are awaiting update on 
recruitment of new worker prior to confirming 
financial support. 

Less

£1,936

£485

£1,010

£6,000

=£1,898
Remaining 
to allocate 

(9022)
Community 
Access 
Defibrillators
£2,595

Un-used budget is rolled forward to facilitate 
maintenance, electricity supply and kit re-stock 
costs. To cover the remaining 7 years of the 
equipment’s life span. 

=£2,595
Remaining 
to allocate

(9026)
Cultural & 
Economic 
Services
£39,700

= £39,700
Remaining
to allocate

(9027)
Town Centre 
Management 
£2,833

2018/19 anticipated spend on town centre bench 
repairs. =£2,833

Remaining 
to allocate

(9028)
Signage – 
proposed 
allocation of 
£4,865

Committee endorsed to continue improving town 
centre signage i.e. improve directional signage for 
Friday Street/ Ropa Court and Hockliffe Street. =£4,621 

Remaining 
to allocate

(9055)
Public 

Committed for refurbishment works. 
Spend to date £11,966

Page 30



 

2.4 A Greenfields residents representative has approached officers with a request 
for the Council to purchase and install a 6th community defibrillator on the 
exterior of their building. The building is owned and managed by Aldwyck 
Housing Association. Discussions are at an early stage yet the need for 
residents to raise funds towards the defibrillator has been explained to their 
representative. 

2.5 The purchase of a defibrillator is in the region of £2,200. Committee is asked to 
contribute the sum of £500 using earmarked reserves budget, 970/9057, 
towards the purchase of the defibrillator, to be released when sufficient funds 
are secured. 

2.6 Officers have checked with our volunteer First Responder who undertakes the 
weekly inspection of the town defibrillators, to see if he can fit in a 6th weekly 
defibrillator inspection. He has confirmed he is able to. 

2.7 The reserves held by committee to undertake repairs and purchase 
replacement kit is believed by officers to be sufficient to manage a 6th 
defibrillator within allocated EMR (970/9022) and current year budget 
(101/4554). Officers have posed the idea to Aldwyck HA that they could 
consider covering installation costs and ongoing electricity charges thereafter. 
This is to be confirmed. 

2.8 Officers have also approached local community organisation involved in the 
original scheme in request for their financial support and await their response.

 END

Conveniences
£53,881

Allocated 
£-0-

(9057)
Community 
Projects
£28,029

Committee endorsed - £2,000 for use in 2018/19 for 
the WWI Centenary Remembrance activity. 

Recommendation 1.2 - pending Committee 
endorsement. £500 contribution for 6th 
community defibrillator

Less
£2,000

£500

=£25,529
Remaining
to allocate

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



06/06/2018
 Leighton-Linslade Town Council


16:48
 Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 31/05/2018
 Page No 1


Month No : 2
 Cost Centre Report


Actual 
 Actual Year 
 Current 
  Variance 
 Committed 
 Funds 
 % of 


Current Mth
 To Date
 Annual Bud
 Annual Total
 Expenditure
 Available
 Budget


970
 Cultural & Economic


9018
 Economic Development
 0
 0
 28,914
 28,914
 3,300
 25,614
 11.4 %


9019
 Best Bar None
 1,018
 1,018
 7,959
 6,941
 527
 6,415
 19.4 %


9020
 Tactic
 1,936
 1,936
 11,329
 9,393
 485
 8,908
 21.4 %


9022
 Defibrillators
 0
 0
 2,595
 2,595
 2,595
 0.0 %


9026
 Cultural & Economic Services
 0
 0
 39,700
 39,700
 39,700
 0.0 %


9027
 Town Centre Management
 0
 0
 2,833
 2,833
 2,833
 0.0 %


9028
 Signage
 112
 112
 4,865
 4,753
 132
 4,621
 5.0 %


9044
 Christmas
 0
 0
 2,134
 2,134
 2,134
 0.0 %


9046
 Budget Contingency
 0
 0
 630
 630
 630
 0.0 %


9055
 Public Conveniences
 11,966
 11,966
 53,881
 41,915
 33,034
 8,881
 83.5 %


9057
 Community Projects
 0
 0
 28,029
 28,029
 28,029
 0.0 %


Cultural & Economic :- Expenditure
 15,032
 37,477
 130,360
 28.7 %
15,032
 182,869
 167,837


Net Expenditure over Income
 15,032
 15,032
 182,869
 167,837


Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



07/06/2018
 Leighton-Linslade Town Council


13:58
 Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 31/05/2018
 Page No 1


Month No : 2
 Committee Report


Actual 
 Actual Year 
 Current 
  Variance 
 Committed 
 Funds 
 % of 


Current Mth
 To Date
 Annual Bud
 Annual Total
 Expenditure
 Available
 Budget


Cultural & Economic


101
 Community Projects


4000
 Salaries
 12,379
 24,426
 143,474
 119,048
 119,048
 17.0 %


4003
 Event Salaries
 0
 768
 8,000
 7,232
 7,232
 9.6 %


4008
 Staff Travel
 93
 93
 450
 357
 357
 20.8 %


4013
 Event Consultancy
 4,080
 4,080
 25,500
 21,420
 20,400
 1,020
 96.0 %


4328
 About Town
 0
 676
 5,000
 4,324
 4,324
 13.5 %


4408
 Salaries Christmas
 0
 0
 5,000
 5,000
 5,000
 0.0 %


4412
 Christmas Lights
 0
 0
 32,000
 32,000
 32,000
 0.0 %


4509
 Childrens Trail
 0
 2
 4,000
 3,998
 3,998
 0.1 %


4511
 Christmas Street Event
 0
 0
 13,000
 13,000
 4,935
 8,065
 38.0 %


4513
 Band Concerts
 1,626
 1,626
 6,000
 4,374
 3,024
 1,350
 77.5 %


4515
 Canal Festival
 -490
 707
 18,000
 17,293
 7,120
 10,172
 43.5 %


4516
 Living History Day
 0
 0
 10,000
 10,000
 1,564
 8,436
 15.6 %


4518
 General Promotions
 0
 0
 4,000
 4,000
 735
 3,265
 18.4 %


4520
 Movies for the More Mature
 0
 -900
 4,500
 5,400
 5,400
 -20.0 %


4522
 Big Plan Projects
 -200
 -200
 0
 200
 200
 0.0 %


4552
 Big Lunch
 6,057
 6,472
 10,000
 3,528
 4,852
 -1,324
 113.2 %


4553
 Salaries Big Lunch
 0
 0
 3,000
 3,000
 449
 2,552
 14.9 %


4554
 Community Access Defibrillator
 0
 0
 1,000
 1,000
 1,000
 0.0 %


4572
 Town Bunting
 0
 1,700
 3,000
 1,300
 1,300
 56.7 %


4574
 Independents' Day
 0
 0
 500
 500
 500
 0.0 %


4920
 Visitor Economy/Tourism
 700
 700
 5,000
 4,300
 700
 3,600
 28.0 %


Community Projects :- Expenditure
 24,246
 43,778
 217,494
 27.8 %
40,152
 301,424
 261,272


1051
 Canal Festival Income
 1,136
 3,456
 9,600
 -6,144
 36.0 %


1055
 Big Lunch Income
 1,435
 2,445
 0
 2,445
 0.0 %


1058
 Best Bar None - Income
 0
 2,000
 0
 2,000
 0.0 %


1201
 Sales
 240
 290
 500
 -210
 58.0 %


1700
 Miscellaneous Income
 0
 50
 0
 50
 0.0 %


Community Projects :- Income
 2,811
 81.6 %
8,241
 10,100
 -1,859


Net Expenditure over Income
 21,435
 31,911
 291,324
 259,413


103
 MTRF


4907
 MTRF
 6,115
 15,607
 0
 -15,607
 18,180
 -33,787
 0.0 %


MTRF :- Expenditure
 6,115
 18,180
 -33,787
15,607
 0
 -15,607


Net Expenditure over Income
 6,115
 15,607
 0
 -15,607


Continued on Page No 2

Page 35



07/06/2018
 Leighton-Linslade Town Council


13:58
 Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 31/05/2018
 Page No 2


Month No : 2
 Committee Report


Actual 
 Actual Year 
 Current 
  Variance 
 Committed 
 Funds 
 % of 


Current Mth
 To Date
 Annual Bud
 Annual Total
 Expenditure
 Available
 Budget


104
 TACTIC


4000
 Salaries
 13,038
 25,917
 160,859
 134,942
 134,942
 16.1 %


4005
 Staff Training
 0
 -68
 1,700
 1,768
 983
 785
 53.8 %


4006
 Staff Expenses/Allowances
 0
 0
 200
 200
 200
 0.0 %


4008
 Staff Travel
 33
 118
 200
 82
 82
 58.8 %


4009
 Protective Clothing
 0
 0
 200
 200
 200
 0.0 %


4011
 Advertising
 0
 0
 200
 200
 200
 0.0 %


4014
 Projects
 952
 1,028
 4,700
 3,672
 528
 3,144
 33.1 %


4100
 Repairs & Maintenance
 57
 57
 3,000
 2,943
 1,065
 1,878
 37.4 %


4131
 Energy - Electricity
 0
 0
 800
 800
 800
 0.0 %


4132
 Energy - Gas
 55
 153
 600
 447
 447
 25.4 %


4135
 Water
 20
 40
 400
 360
 360
 10.0 %


4145
 Rates
 540
 1,080
 6,399
 5,319
 5,319
 16.9 %


4147
 Service Charges
 0
 0
 800
 800
 800
 0.0 %


4150
 Cleaning Materials
 43
 47
 400
 353
 353
 11.8 %


4300
 Equipment - purchase
 0
 11
 1,500
 1,489
 33
 1,456
 2.9 %


4309
 IT Support
 0
 160
 500
 340
 340
 32.0 %


4320
 Telephones
 81
 167
 1,300
 1,133
 1,133
 12.8 %


4321
 Office Supplies
 2
 56
 1,500
 1,444
 1,444
 3.7 %


4326
 Subscriptions
 0
 0
 150
 150
 150
 0.0 %


4327
 Publicity
 0
 0
 500
 500
 291
 209
 58.2 %


4374
 Refreshments
 26
 50
 500
 450
 450
 10.0 %


4426
 Refuse
 0
 0
 350
 350
 350
 0.0 %


4725
 Grant Aided Expenditure
 2,000
 2,000
 0
 -2,000
 -2,000
 0.0 %


TACTIC :- Expenditure
 16,847
 2,899
 153,044
 18.1 %
30,815
 186,758
 155,943


1000
 Rent Receivable
 452
 785
 500
 285
 157.1 %


1057
 Activities - Income
 644
 644
 500
 144
 128.7 %


1151
 Grants Received
 2,000
 2,000
 0
 2,000
 0.0 %


1700
 Miscellaneous Income
 -114
 -114
 0
 -114
 0.0 %


TACTIC :- Income
 2,982
 331.5 %
3,315
 1,000
 2,315


Net Expenditure over Income
 13,865
 27,500
 185,758
 158,258


105
 Youth Cafe


4005
 Staff Training
 0
 -38
 0
 38
 38
 0.0 %


Youth Cafe :- Expenditure
 0
 0
 38
-38
 0
 38


Net Expenditure over Income
 0
 -38
 0
 38


Continued on Page No 3

Page 36



07/06/2018
 Leighton-Linslade Town Council


13:58
 Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 31/05/2018
 Page No 3


Month No : 2
 Committee Report


Actual 
 Actual Year 
 Current 
  Variance 
 Committed 
 Funds 
 % of 


Current Mth
 To Date
 Annual Bud
 Annual Total
 Expenditure
 Available
 Budget


412
 Street Markets


4000
 Salaries
 5,763
 11,364
 67,784
 56,420
 56,420
 16.8 %


4001
 Temporary Staff
 468
 468
 5,000
 4,532
 4,532
 9.4 %


4005
 Staff Training
 0
 8
 1,000
 992
 992
 0.8 %


4008
 Staff Travel
 268
 643
 200
 -443
 -443
 321.4 %


4100
 Repairs & Maintenance
 154
 154
 2,500
 2,346
 2,346
 6.2 %


4130
 Security
 63
 1,596
 9,000
 7,404
 10,647
 -3,243
 136.0 %


4131
 Energy - Electricity
 29
 29
 500
 471
 471
 5.7 %


4145
 Rates
 1,094
 2,189
 15,115
 12,926
 12,926
 14.5 %


4170
 Themed Markets
 35
 211
 3,500
 3,289
 570
 2,719
 22.3 %


4300
 Equipment - purchase
 495
 495
 1,000
 505
 505
 49.5 %


4322
 Printing & Stationery
 0
 0
 300
 300
 300
 0.0 %


4326
 Subscriptions
 0
 318
 500
 182
 182
 63.6 %


4327
 Publicity
 870
 870
 3,500
 2,630
 38
 2,593
 25.9 %


4426
 Refuse
 760
 1,432
 6,500
 5,068
 5,068
 22.0 %


4575
 Market Bursaries
 0
 0
 1,000
 1,000
 1,000
 0.0 %


Street Markets :- Expenditure
 9,999
 11,255
 86,369
 26.4 %
19,776
 117,399
 97,623


1056
 Pop-Up Market Income
 0
 0
 450
 -450
 0.0 %


1300
 Tuesday Market
 3,240
 6,097
 40,000
 -33,903
 15.2 %


1301
 Saturday Market
 3,472
 7,319
 55,000
 -47,681
 13.3 %


1302
 Farmers Market
 144
 306
 2,000
 -1,694
 15.3 %


1303
 Speciality Markets
 550
 550
 2,000
 -1,450
 27.5 %


1304
 Craft Markets
 180
 400
 1,800
 -1,400
 22.2 %


1305
 Commercial Market
 300
 300
 2,500
 -2,200
 12.0 %


1700
 Miscellaneous Income
 0
 0
 500
 -500
 0.0 %


Street Markets :- Income
 7,886
 14.4 %
14,972
 104,250
 -89,278


Net Expenditure over Income
 2,113
 4,804
 13,149
 8,345


413
 Public Conveniences


4100
 Repairs & Maintenance
 226
 235
 5,000
 4,765
 120
 4,645
 7.1 %


4148
 Management Fee
 3,792
 7,584
 45,500
 37,916
 37,916
 16.7 %


4382
 Insurances
 0
 0
 100
 100
 100
 0.0 %


4422
 Service Charges
 0
 0
 3,000
 3,000
 3,000
 0.0 %


Public Conveniences :- Expenditure
 4,018
 120
 45,661
 14.8 %
7,819
 53,600
 45,781


Net Expenditure over Income
 4,018
 7,819
 53,600
 45,781


Cultural & Economic :- Expenditure
 61,224
 114,130
 659,181
 545,051
 76,232
 468,819
 28.9 %


13,678
 26,528
 115,350
 -88,822
Income
 23.0 %


Net Expenditure over Income
 47,546
 87,603
 543,831
 456,228


Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Cultural & Economic Services Committee Agenda item 15.

Date:  13 June 2018

Title:  Christmas Lights

Purpose of the Report: To receive proposals for the next 3-year 
contract.

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Economic 
Development

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. Objective 19
Implications:
Financial √ Within existing budget. £30k per year has been 

allocated with a 3-year delivery period, totalling 
£90k

Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery

√ Contracted service.

Procedural/Legal √ Financial regulations in play. Tender process.
Risk/Health and Safety

A. RECOMMENDATION

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To contract Tender ‘C’ to deliver the next 3-year Christmas Lighting 
scheme. 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Committee’s work plan 2018/19 identified the task to secure a new three-year 
contract for the new Christmas Lighting scheme. Tender documents were 
placed on the Government tender portal in April of this year. In addition, officers 
alerted several potential contractors who had contacted the Council querying 
when the scheme was up for renewal. 

2.2 The new three-year scheme will run from Christmas 2018 through to 2020 
inclusive. The budget allocation is £30,000 per year to include, annual fixings 
testing, installation and removal, hiring and storage of scheme equipment, call 
out charges, new infrastructure installation and so on. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 15



 

2.3 The Rotary Club of Leighton-Linslade has expressed their wish to sponsor the 
lights on the Christmas tree following their successful sponsorship for the 
previous three years. This is yet to be formally agreed by the Club pending the 
Council’s awarding of the contract. Tender prices for Christmas tree lights have 
been incorporated in officer consideration at the highest quoted option.  

2.4 Tender components are:

A. Main scheme
B. Christmas tree decorations 
C. Variant bid

2.5 5 tenders were received by the deadline date of 18 May 2018. 

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 All tenders where assessed as per the Pre-Qualifying Questionnaire (PQQ) 
prior to further Suitability Assessment shortlisting. Beyond the PQQ shortlisting 
elements, tenders where assessed on the design proposals that would offer a 
visual shift change from the previous 3-year contract, the ability of the design 
to enhance the town centre, value for money regarding coverage, services and 
cost, and so on. 

3.2 The pricing is competitive and close in comparison between all 5 tenders in 
respect of our available funds. All tenders were asked to ensure contingency 
budget availability within the budget for new infrastructure and call-out spend. 
One tender pushed the budget availability. 

3.3 Details of all three tenders vary in what is included, call-out fees, coverage and 
design aesthetics that we seek. 

 
4. CONCLUSION

4.1 All tenders are of a good, comparable quality and competence information. 
Differences are in the stylisation of the lighting scheme, whether the coverage 
is baseline or expanding and whether costs for making-good or new 
infrastructure, are included. 

4.2 Four tenders fall within budget. The fifth reaches the budget limit. Whilst all 
tenders push boundaries, flexibility to cope with the unforeseen within budget 
is a consideration. 

4.3 As per para. 2.3 above, should sponsorship not be confirmed for the Christmas 
tree, consideration has been given to covering this cost in rounded up figures. 

4.4 The recommendation is to enter a contract with tender ‘C’.

End

Page 40



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	180424 C+E draft

	6 MARKET SUB-COMMITTEE
	Market minutes. Cllr Surgeries on LB Market revised

	7 COMMUNITY EVENTS
	9 TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE
	12 COMMITTEE WORK PLAN AND OBJECTIVES
	14 BUDGET REPORTS
	14. Appendix B C&E Earmarkes reserves
	14. Appendix A C&E budget monitoring report mth 2

	15 CHRISTMAS LIGHTS CONTRACT
	17 MARKET MATTERS
	Nominations


